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2020

181,799,696 65.39
22,288,099 8.02
15,343,742 5.52
4,559,554 1.64
3,940,548 1.42
58,197 0.02
227,989,836 82.00
29,398,236 10.57
10,752,600 3.87
6,507,181 2.34
3,077,067 1.11
9,584,248 3.45
1,251,154 0.45
183,125 0.07
166,724 0.06
50,131 0.02
11,840 0.00
4,849 0.00
1,133 0.00
3,423 0.00
25,337 0.01
1,637,930 0.59
1,285,086 0.46
911,798 0.33
48,742,534 17.53
48,889,833 17.58
147,299 0.05
1,939,925 0.70
279,472,510 100.52
1,442,478 0.52

278,030,032
29,713 100.00
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2020
7 7)) )
1 | TIFFANY & CO 264,137 132.87 | 35,095,910 | 126.50 | 33,413,331 | 12.02
Refinitiv/Thomson
Reuters(F&R)9/18(USD)
2 ) 29,966,354 | 0.99 29,633,082 0.98 29,395,195 | 10.57
Cov - Lite - TLB -
LIENL
3 | E*XTRADE FINANCIAL CORP 693,067 38.20 | 26,474,855 | 40.61 | 28,145,451 | 10.12
4 | INNOGY SE 352,657 48.61 | 17,143,683 | 47.48 | 16,743,791 | 6.02
5 | LEGG MASON INC 281,603 48.20 | 13,573,364 | 49.83 | 14,032,277 | 5.05
TD AMERITRADE HOLDING
6 344,870 40.70 | 14,034,655 | 39.27 | 13,543,045 | 4.87
CORP
7 | WABCO HOLDINGS INC 99,217 132.53 | 13,148,988 | 134.38 | 13,332,780 | 4.80
8 | QIAGEN N.V. 288,811 40.44 | 11,678,695 | 41.63 | 12,022,913 | 4.32
9 | AABA__ESCROW 550,321 21.30 | 11,724,036 | 21.80 | 11,996,998 | 4.32
10 | WRIGHT MEDICAL GROUP NV 396,937 28.06 | 11,136,739 | 29.12 | 11,558,805 | 4.16
ANIXTER INTERNATIONAL
11 e 96,391 95.33 9,189,255 92.86 8,950,868 | 3.22
12 | TECH DATA CORP 47,657 136.59 | 6,509,548 | 140.64 | 6,702,480 | 2.41
13 | TAUBMAN CENTERS INC 153,114 50.20 7,686,555 43.10 6,599,213 | 2.37
CAESARS ENTERTAIN CORP
14 5.000 |2024/10/ | 4,560,255 1.51 6,884,583 1.42 6,488,180 | 2.33
5.000% 10/01/24 CVT
15 | 1AC/INTERACTIVECORP 27,908 223.16 | 6,227,953 | 223.48 | 6,236,830 | 2.24
ACACIA COMMUNICATIONS
16 e 89,305 67.30 6,010,267 67.69 6,045,055 | 2.17
NAVISTAR INTL CORP
17 6.625 |2025/11/ | 6,476,000 1.04 6,726,546 0.86 5,588,140 | 2.01
6.625% 11/01/25 SR:144A
18 | OSRAM LICHT AG - TEND 108,784 4427 4,816,234 44.20 4,808,625 1.73
19 | TELECOM ITALIA-RSP 11,637,199| 0.53 6,212,315 0.40 4,632,824 1.67
20 | LINE 85,900 48.36 4,153,998 49.17 4,223,670 1.52
DELPHI TECHNOLOGIES PLC
21 5.000 |2025/10/ | 4,467,995 1.03 4,613,267 0.94 4,205,500 1.51
5.000% 10/01/25 SR:144A
CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT
22 419,873 11.52 4,836,125 9.66 4,055,973 1.46
CORP
FIAT CHRYSLER
23 427,704 12.59 5,383,915 8.78 3,755,895 1.35
AUTOMOBILES NV
24 | LOGMEIN INC 43,762 83.38 3,648,778 85.46 3,739,901 1.35
25 | EL PASO ELECTRIC CO 54,279 67.67 3,672,808 68.00 3,690,972 1.33
26 | IBERIABANK CORP 78,282 37.93 2,969,102 41.46 3,245,572 1.17
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27 | GRANDVISION NV 121,622 | 30.28 | 3,682,223 | 26.51 | 3,224,333 | 1.16
INGENICO GROUP SA
28 [ 0.000% 06/26/22 SR:ING 0.000|2022/ /26| 15,741 | 200.85 | 3,161,506 | 195.48 | 3,077,067 | 1.11
ovT
NAVISTAR INTERNATIONAL
29 112,355 | 35.58 | 3,997,416 | 23.77 | 2,670,678 | 0.96
CORP
30 | FITBIT INC - A 370,676 | 6.46 | 2,396,137 | 6.69 | 2,479,822 | 0.89
2020
2020
2019 12 2020
14,536 1,553 100.41 10,731
2019 12
2019 12 14,536 1,553 100.41 10,731
2020 20,558 2,197 100.60 10,751
54,957 5,873 99.75 10,660
90,592 9,682 96.00 10,260
93,870 10,032 99.94 10,681
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2019 12 1,262 10,069
2019 12 1,262 10,069
2020 2,669 10,039

8,350 9,898
13,938 9,587
14,442 9,947

2019 12 801 10,013
2019 12 801 10,013
2020 987 10,083

2,667 9,966
5,088 9,555
5,296 9,926
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2019 12 30

( ) « D
417,753 44,645
30,192,340 30,623,974 3,272,784
144,372 15,429
21,061,104 2,250,800
32,406 3,463
177,086 18,925
52,456,695 5,606,047
10,868,871 11,256,740 1,203,008
9,876 1,055
614,961 65,721
7,038,100 752,162
45,185 4,829
5,206 556
9,530 1,018
18,979,598 2,028,350
33,477,097 3,577,697

125,299 10,069
79,972 10,013

144,767 100.41 10,731
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2019 12 30
( ) )

87,045 9,302
(37,179) (3,973)
13,650 1,459
134,496 14,374
198,012 21,162
3,492 373
13,256 1,417
16,748 1,790
14,166 1,514
21,145 2,260
23,947 2,559
12,567 1,343
71,825 7,676
(55,077) (5,886)
142,935 15,275
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2019 12 6 2019 12 30
( ) « )
(55,077) (5,886)
87,045 9,302
(37,179) (3,973)
13,650 1,459
134,496 14,374
142,935 15,275
11,539,786 1,233,257
7,355,776 786,112
14,476,700 1,547,125
7,000,000 748,090
(7,038,100) (752,162)
33,334,162 3,562,422
33,477,097 3,577,697

33,477,097 3,577,697
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2019 12 30

( ) « )
142,935 15,275
(43,483,918) (4,647,126)
13,328,988 1,424,469
(391,458) (41,835)
11,312,254 1,208,941
(89,335) (9,547)
(43,765) (4,677)
(144,372) (15,429)
(21,061,104) (2,250,800)
(32,406) (3,463)
(177,086) (18,925)
9,876 1,055
614,961 65,721
45,185 4,829
5,206 556
9,530 1,018
(39,954,509) (4,269,938)
40,372,262 4,314,584
40,372,262 4,314,584
417,753 44,645
417,753 44,645
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2019 12 30

27,677,170 1,082,498 28,759,668
1,416,552 1,416,552

376,552 376,552

71,202 71,202
27,748,372 2,875,602 30,623,974
23,461 23,461

266,618 266,618

290,079 290,079

27,748,372 3,165,681 30,914,053
10,660,467 10,660,467
596,273 596,273
11,256,740 11,256,740
155,583 155,583

155,583 155,583

11,256,740 155,583 11,412,323
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149,107 (448,418)
3,727,077
17,184,920 (166,543)
21,061,104 (614,961)
2019 12 6 2019 12 30
ASC 740
2019 12

6 019 12 30
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*k

*k

71,202 266,618 10,914,498 39,500 (155,583) 8,731,736
* 23,461 7,342,449 *
71,202 290,079 (155,583)
* 2019 12 30
2019 12 6 2019 12 30
(37,179) (981) 111,035 (11,389)
23,461
(37,179) (981) 134,496 (11,389)
23,461 23,461 23,461
266,618 (145,707) 120,911 120,911
71,202 71,202
290,079 (145,707) 144,372 71,202 215,574
(155,583) 145,707 (9,876) 9,876
(155,583) 145,707 (9,876) 9,876
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2019 12 30
3,727,077
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100
(i)1,000 (
1,000
2019 12 30
2019
2019 12 30
12 6
125,299.00 125,299.00
79,972.00 79,972.00
144,767.00 144,767.00
70,000.00 (70,000.00)
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) 2019 12 30
10,000 10,000 100.00
(16) (16) (0.16)

85 29 0.57

69 13 0.41
10,069 10,013 100.41
0.72 0.19 0.46
(0.03) (0.06) (0.05)
0.69 0.13 0.41
0.13 0.13 0.13
0.07 0.07 0.07
0.20 0.20 0.20
(0.16) (0.16) (0.16)
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2020 20

COVID-19

COVID-19

2020 14 245,530,905 8,621,542
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2019 12 30
1,946,311 5.81
Caesars Entertainment Corporation 41,777 565,661 1.69
2,858,048 8.54
3,423,709 10.23
TD Ameritrade Holding Corporation 42,699 2,133,669 6.37
WellCare Health Plans Inc 20,670 6,836,809 20.42
1,402,413 4.19
8,239,222 2461
251,844 0.75
Cypress Semiconductor Corp. 112,356 2,620,142 7.83
2,475,050 7.39
5,095,192 15.22
20,808,763 21,089,947 62.99
44,262 0.13
594,462 1.78
4,702 0.01
623,641 643,426 1.92
1,034,000 3.09
1,921,596 5.74
310,208 0.93
579,679 1.73
565,822 1.69
663,540 1.98
1,951,450 5.83
6,946,275 7,026,295 20.99

28,378,679 28,759,668 85.90
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Caesars Entertainment Corporation (5%,

10/1/2024) ( 1,362,717 ) 739,000 1,416,552 4.23
320,549 0.96

56,003 0.17

368,353 376,552 1.13

15,917 0.05

55,285 0.17

82,591 71,202 0.22

30,192,340 30,623,974 91.48
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806,371 2.41

The Charles Schwab Corporation 46,283 2,213,253 6.61
Centene Corporation 69,865 4,404,290 13.16
570,254 1.70

7,727,346 7,994,168 23.88

86,229 0.26

465,229 1.39

524,833 551,458 1.65

1,017,170 3.05

281,697 0.84

145,503 0.43

670,471 2.00

2,053,252 2,114,841 6.32

10,305,431 10,660,467 31.85

563,440 596,273 1.78

10,868,871 11,256,740 33.63
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23,461 0.07
67,675 0.20
163,433 0.49
231,108 0.69
(264) (0.00)
17,622 0.04
(1,750) (0.01)
(9,066) (0.03)
(104) (0.00)
(5.,000) (0.01)
1,677 0.01
(816) (0.00)
(4,638) (0.01)
(2,075) (0.01)

228,769 0.68
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(53,924) (0.16)
(10,294) (0.03)
(64,218) (0.19)
(65,885) (0.19)

7,909 0.02

4,460 0.01
(53,516) (0.16)
(117,734) (0.35)
111,035 0.33
134,496 0.40

ASC815
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(Stated in United States Dollars)

December 30, 2019
Assets
Cash b 417.753
Investments in securities, at fair value (cost $30,192,340) 30,623,974
Derivative assets 144,372
Due from brokers 21,061,104
Dividends and interest receivable 32,406
Other assets 177,086
Total assets 52,456,695
Liabilities
Securities sold, not vet purchased, at fair value (proceeds $10,868,871) 11,256,740
Derivative liabilities 9,876
Due to brokers 214,961
Redemptions payable 7,038,100
Due to Investment Manager 45,185
Dividends payable 5.206
Acerned expenses and other liabilities 9530
Total liabilities 18.979 598
Net assets 5 33477097
Net asset value per share
YEN Class (based on 125,299.00 shares outstanding) JPY 10,069
YEN Class (Hedged) (based on 79.972.00 shares outstanding) JPY 10,013
USD Class (based on 144,767.00 shares outstanding) b 100.41

See accompanving noles.
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

Statement of Operations
(Stated in United States Dollars)

Period from December 6, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments
in securities, derivative contracts and foreign

currency
Met realized gain on investments in securities
and foreign currency

Met realized loss on derivative contracts and foreign currency

Net unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments

in securities and foreign currency

Net unrealized appreciation/depreciation on derivative

contracts and foreign currency

Net gain on investments in securities, derivative contracts

and foreign currency

Investment income

Interest

Dividends (net of withholding tax of $5,681)
Total investment ncome

Expenses

Dividends

Management fees (Neofe 3)

Performance fees (Wote 3}

Other

Total expenses

Met investment loss

MNet change in net assets resulting from operations

See accompanying noles.
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(37,179)

13,650

134.496

3 198,012

3492
13,256

16,748

14,166
21,145
23,947
12,567

71,825

{55,077)
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
(Stated in United States Dollars)

Period from December 6, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019

Operations
Net investment loss b (55.07T)
Net realized gain on investments in securities and foreign currency 87.045
Net realized loss on denivative contracts and foreign currency (37179
Net unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments

in securities and foreign currency 13,650
Net unrealized appreciation/depreciation on denvative contracts and

foreign currency 134,496
Net change in net assets resulting from operations 142,935

Capital share transactions

YEN Class subscriptions 11.539.786
YEN Class (Hedged) subscriptions 7,353,776
USD Class subsenptions 14,476,700
USD Class (Management) subscriptions 7,000,000
USD Class (Management) redemptions (7.038,100)
Net change in net assets resulting from capital share transactions 33,334,162
Net change in net assets 33,477,097
Net assetz at beginning of period -
Net assets at end of penod S 33.477.007
See accompanying notes.
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

Period from December 6, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019

Operating activities
Net change in net assets resulting from operations
Adjustments to reconcile net change in net assets resulting
from operations to net cash used in operating activities;
Purchases of investments in securities
Proceeds from sales of investmenis in securities
Covers of securities sold, not yet purchased
Sales of securities sold. not yet purchased
Met realized gain on investments in securities and foreign currency
Net unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments
in securities and foreign currency
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Derivative assels
Due from brokers
Drvidends and interest receivable
Other assets
Derivative liabilities
Due to brokers
Due to Investment Manager
Dividends payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Met cash used in operating activities

Financing activities
Subscriptions
Net cash provided by financing activities

Met change in cash

Cash at beginning of period
Cash at end of period

See accompanying noles.
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B

142,935

(43,483.918)
13,328,988

(391.458)
11,312,254

(89,335)

(43,765)

(144,372)
(21,061,104)
(32,406)
(177.086)
9,876
614961
45,185
52006
9,530

(39,954,509)

40372262

40,372.262

417,753

B

417.753
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

Period from December 6, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019
1. Organization

Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund {the Trust) is an exempted unit trust
organized in the Cayman Islands and registered under the Cayman Islands Trusts Law and
commenced operations on December 6, 2019, The Trust is registered under the Cayman Islands
Mutual Funds Law. The Trst’s investment objective 1s to realize consistently high nisk-adjusted
appreciation in the value ofits assets. The Trust seeks to achieve its investment objective primarily
through investments in the securities of enfities involved in announced mergers. acquisitions or
contests for control (including by shorting such securities), however, the Trust also may make
investments in enfities involved in other tvpes of restructuring or corporate events when, in the
manager's opimon, attractive opportunities exist,

The Trust’s advisor is UBS O'Connor LLC (the Investment Manager), a Delaware limited liabality
company, which 1s registered with the U.S. Secunties and Exchange Commission as an investment
adviser. The Investment Manager may use certain personnel of one or more of its affiliates, or
engage one or more of its affiliates as sub-advisers to provide investment advice for certain assets
of the Trust. The Investment Manager 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Asset Management
(Americas) Inc. UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. and any affiliated sub-advisers are
wholly owned subsidiaries of UBS AG (UBS) and are part of UBS Asset Management, which
provides vanous operational and managerial support services to the Investment Manager.

The Trust’s admimstrator 15 MUFG Alternative Fund Services (lreland) Lumited (the
Administrator). The Administrator provides certain administrative services to the Trust, including
maintenance of the Trust’s books and records, and serves as registrar for the Trust’s units. AFS
Controlled Subsidiary 3 Ltd. (the Trustee), a trust company, wholly-owned by an affiliate of the
Admunistrator and licensed to undertake trust services pursuant to the provisions of the Banks and
Trust Compamies Law (as amended) of the Cayman Islands, has been appointed as trustee to the
Trust.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Investment Manager has evaluated the structure, objectives and activities of the Trust and
determined that it meets the charactenistics of an investment company. As such, these financial
statemnents have applied the guidance set forth in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 946,
Financial Services—Investment Companies. The following 15 a summary of significant accounting
and reporting policies used in preparing the financial statements.

12
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the finanecial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Investment Transactions

Investment transactions, which include securities sold, not vet purchased, are accounted for on a
trade-date basis. Dividends are recognized on the ex-dividend date, and interest is accrued as
earned or incurred. Realized gains and losses on secunties transactions are recorded on a first-in,
first-out cost basis.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Trust’s assets and hiabiliies, which qualify as financial instruments under
ASC 825, Financial Instruments, approximates the carrving amounts presented in the financial
statermnents.

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, clarifies the definition of fair value for financial reporting,
establishes a framework used to measure fair value and enhances disclosure requirements for fair
value measurements. The Investment Manager has categonzed the Trust’s financial instruments,
based on the priority of the valuation technique, into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The
valuation hierarchy is based upon the observability of the inputs to the valuation of the financial
asset or hability as of the measurement date. A financial instrument’s categorization within the
valuation hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is sigmificant to the fair value
measurement.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for 1dentical
assets or liabilities in active markets,

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and
liahilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement. This includes situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset
or liability,

13
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value 1s the price that would be received in the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a hiability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Where available, fair
value is based on observable market prices or parameters, or derived from such prices or
parameters using market standard models. These valuation models involve some level of
estimation and judgment, the degree of which 15 dependent on the price transparency for the
instruments or market and the instrument complexity. Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value
are categorized for disclosure purposes based on the level of judgment associated with the inputs
used to measure their value as described above.

The availahility of observable inputs can vary depending on the financial asset or liability and is
affected by a wide variety of factors, including, for example, the type of product, whether the
product is new, whether the product 1s traded on an active exchange or in the secondary market
and the current market conditions. To the extent that the valuation is based on models or inputs
that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires
more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised by the Investment Manager in
deternuning fair value is least for assets and lhabilities classified as Level 1 and greatest for assets
and liabilities classified as Level 3. In certain cases, inputs used to measure fair value may fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy.

The valuation process is governad by the Investment Manager’s Valuation Policy and Procedures
{the Valuation Palicy), which has been approved by the Trustee of the Trust. The Valuation Policy
governs the wvaluation of all investments and defines the valuation principles and prcing
conventions for each investment type as described below. In addition, the Valuation Policy
establishes a valuation committee (the Valuation Committee). The Valuation Committee
membership includes representation from the Investment Manager’s Legal, Compliance, Product
Control, Valuation and Market Risk Control teams. The Valuation Committee is specifically
responsible for the implementation of the Valuation Policy. The Valuation Committee will escalate
issues to the Trustee as deemed necessary. The Valuation Committee also reviews and approves
the valuation methodology implemented for any new investment types, as well as for investments
in private securities or securities where the valuation is driven by unobservable inputs. The voting
members of the Valuation Committee are non-investment team perscnnel, chaired by the
Investment Manager’s Chief Operating Officer, although the Valuation Committee may obtain
input from investment team personnel in reaching their conclusions, The Product Control team of
the Investment Manager holds a monthly valuation meeting attended by representatives of the
Trust’s Administrator to discuss the valuation process and any valuations that sigmficantly diverge
from the independent sources. If these items cannot be resolved, they are escalated to the Valuation
Committee as appropriate.

14
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Investment Manager is responsible for the valuation of all assets and liabilities of the Trust.
The Admuinistrator also performs an independent review of all assets and hiabilities, as defined by
the Valuation Policy. Any changes to the valuation methodology are reviewed by the
Administrator and the Valuation Committee. Any material changes are reviewed and approved by
the Trustee.

In addition to the Valuation Committee, the Investment Manager has created a committee for
transactions requiring pre-approval (TRPA Committee). This committes is comprised of
representatives from the logistics teams of the Investment Manager, including Product Control,
Tax, Valuation, Legal, Compliance, Market Risk Control and Information Technology. Under the
TRPA Committee’s remit is the approval of new instrument types prior to trading. and also an
annual evaluation of dormant instrument types. An instrument type made dormant would need re-
approval through the TRPA Committee prior to trading. The TRPA Committee evaluates the
relevant pricing models or pricing sources to be used in determining the instrument’s fair value
and agrees on a valuation methodology. The Product Control team of the Investment Manager also
reviews daily profit and loss reporting and analyzes material changes to assist in evaluating the
reasonableness of investment valuations. In addition, reviews of stale pricing and back-testing of
prices for certain less liquid investments are performed, and a summary of these results is provided
to the Valuation Committee on a quarterly basis for review.

The following is a deseription of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at
fair value, including the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation
hierarchy as described above. The valuation methodologies disclosed below are general guidelines
and the actual valuation methodology could vary from instrument to instrument to provide the
most appropriate fair value measurement. The net unrealized appreciation/depreciation on these
instruments is reflected in the statement of operations.
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Exchange-Traded Instruments

Generally, the fair value of financial instruments that are listed on a securities exchange are
determined by their last sales price or the official closing price on the date as of which the value is
being deterrmned on the primary exchange on which such financial instruments are trading. The
fair values for exchange-traded common and preferred equity securities are determined in this
manner. The fair value of exchange-traded funds is determined by the official composite of the
closing prices. Exchange-traded options represent standard derivative contracts (derivatives)
traded on a regulated exchange. The fair values for non-U.S. exchange-traded options are
determined by the settlement price as quoted on the exchange on which the instrument is traded.
The fair value of .5, exchange-traded options is determined by the composite exchange mid price.
Exchange-traded common and preferred equity secunities, funds and options are generally
classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. If they trade outside of exchanges. but are
actively quoted by brokers or dealers, they are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,
but if they are rarely quoted or the quotes or pricing sources are not deemed to be representative
of fair value, other inputs and assumptions, such as analysis performed by the Investment Manager,
may be used in the valuation that may result in the classification of the secunty within Level 3 of
the fair value huerarchy.

Fived fncome instriments

The fair value for fixed income instruments is determined by using quoted market prices, broker or
dealer quotations, external pricing providers or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of
price transparency. The types of instruments valued based on quoted market prices include bonds
backed by governments worldwide. These secunities are generally classified within Level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy. The types of instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be as active
as the markets described above, but are valued based on quoted market prices, broker or dealer
quotations, external pricing providers or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price
transparency. include convertible bonds and corporate bonds. Such instruments are generally classified
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. If a fixed income mstrument is rarely quoted or the quotes
or pricing sources are not deemed to be representative of fair value, other inputs and assumptions, such
as analysis performed by the Investment Manager, may be used in the valuation that may result in the
claszification of the security within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Over-the-Counter Derivatives

The fair values for over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives are generally determined using market
standard quantitative pricing models using inputs based on observable market data or inputs
corroborated by observable market data in addition to counterparty quotes. The appropriate model
15 selected based upon the contractual terms of and specific risks inherent in the instrument.
Valuation models require a variety of inputs, including, but not limited to, the terms of the
derivative, observable market prices, time value of money, credit spreads, vield curves and
measures of volatility. For OTC derivatives that trade in liquid markets, such as certain swaps,
model inputs can generally be verified and observed, and maodel selection does not require
significant judgment by the Investment Manager. These model valuations are also validated by
comparing such values to quotes provided by the counterparty to the transaction or an independent
party. The Trust trades OTC options and contracts for differences. As the sigmficant inputs for
these instruments can generally be corroborated to market observable inputs, these instruments are
generally classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Certain of these instmuments may be
classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy because they trade infrequently and therefore
have little or no pricing transparency, or the lowest level of sigmficant input to the valuation model
may not be readily observable.

Although the Trust’s functional currency is the U.S. Dollar, a portion of the Trust’s units are
denominated in Japanese Yen (JPY). For the YEN Class (Hedged) Units the Trust enters into
forward currency contracts with an affiliate of the Administrator to minimize the fluctuations of
the net asset values of the units denomunated in foreign currencies. The fair value for forward
curreney contracts is determined by obtaining independent mid-market quotes for various forward
currency settlements as available and interpolating values falling between those settlement dates
to ammive at a value for the individual contract. These contracts are generally classified within Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy. Gains and losses from such forward currency contracts are included
in realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative contracts and foreign currency in the
statement of operations and are allocated to the YEN Class (Hedged) Units. The Trust does not
enter into a currency hedge for the YEN Class Units,
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Breakdown by Levels

The following table represents the fair value of financial instruments shown by level at
December 30, 2019:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Aszeds
Investments in securities:

Common equities § 27677170 § 1,082,498 & - §  28,759.668

Convertible bonds a 1,416,552 = 1,416,552

Corporate bonds - 376,552 - 376,552

Exchange-traded options and warrants 71.202 - - 71,202
Total investm enits in securities 27,748,372 2875602 - 30,623,974
Derivative contracts:

Forward currency contracts - 13461 - 23461

Contracts for differences - 266,615 - 266,618
Total derivative contracts - 290,07% - 290,079
Total asseis 27748372 & 3,165681 & - £ 30,914,053

Level 1 Level 2 Level ¥ Total

Liahilities
Securities sold, not yet purchased:

Common equities £ 10660467 & - b - £ 10660467

Exchange-traded funds 596,273 - - 596,273
Total investm ents in securities 11,256,740 - - 11,256,740
Derivative contracts:

Contracts for differences - 155,583 155,583
Total derivative contracts - 155,583 - 153,583
Total liabilities 5 11,256,740 § 155,583 § - 5 11.412,323

For more detailed information about the financial instruments, refer to the condensed schedule of
investments. The balance of forward currency contracts and contracts for differences in the table
above are reported on a gross basis by level before netting by counterparty. See Note 6 for further
discussion on denivative netting.
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Due from Brokers and Due to Brokers

Due from brokers and due to brokers include accrued commissions, net receivables and payables
for unsettled trades, net unrealized gains and losses on foreign currency balances, cash, foreign
currencies, margin balances and collateral held at the brokers. The Trust has elected to not offset
fair value amounts recogmzed for cash collateral receivables and payables against fair value
amounts recogmzed for net derivative positions executed with the same counterparty under the
same master netting arrangement. Margin balances are collateralized by certain of the Trust’s
securities and cash balances held by the brokers. In relation to margin debit balances, the Trust is
charped interest at fluctnating rates based on a predefined index rate and a predefined spread.
Certain investments in securities are pledged to the brokers on terms that permit the brokers to sell
or repledge the secunties, subject to certain limitations, Certain cash and securities at the brokers
that are related to securities sold, not vet purchased. are partially restricted until the secunties are
purchased.

The following table presents the breakout of the due from and due to brokers in the statement of
assets and liabalities:
Due from Brokers  Due to Brokers

Unsettled transactions 3 149,107 % (448,418)
Cash collateral 3.727.077 -
Net receivable from/(payable to) brokers 17,184,920 (166,543)
Total ) 21.061.104 % 014,961
Taxation

There is currently no taxation imposed on income or capital gains by the government of the
Cayman Islands. The only taxes payable by the Trust are withholding taxes applicable to certain
investment income and capitals gains taxes in certain jurisdictions. For the period from December
6. 2019 (Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019, no other tax liability or expense
has been recorded in the financial statements.

ASC 740, Income Taxes, defines how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, measured,
presented and disclosed in the financial statements. The Trust has evaluated tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Trust’s tax returns to determine whether the tax
positions are more likely than not to be sustained by the applicable tax authonty. Based on this
analysis of all significant tax jurisdictions and open tax years subject to examination, all material
tax positions were deemed to meet a more likely than not threshold. Therefore, no additional tax
expense, including any interest or penalties, was recorded for the period from December 6, 2019
{(Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019, To the extent the Trust is required to
record interest and penalties, they would be included in interest expense and other expenses,
respactively, in the statement of operations.
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Generally, the tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which the Trust conducts its business can
initiate examinations of tax returns or secunty fransactions within various time periods from the
date the returns are filed or the date the security transactions occurred. As a result, certain tax
returns or security transactions are still subject to examination.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Trust 1s the Umted States Dollars (U.S. Dollar). Assets and
liabilities denominated in a currencey other than the U.S. Dollar are translated into U.S. Dollars at
the mid-market rate of exchange as reported by an independent pricing service. Purchases and
sales of investments and income and expenses denominated in currencies other than U.S. Dollars
are translated at the rates of exchange on the respective dates of such transactions. The resulting
gains and losses from such translation are included in realized and unrealized gains (losses) in the
statement of operations.

3. Fees
Management Fee

As defined in the Confidential Offering Memorandum, the Investment Manager eams a
management fee, payable monthly in arrears. The management fee is accrued as of each calendar
day, calculated at a rate of 1.10% per annum of the Trust’s net asset value, prior to any redemptions
and performance fees. Umts held by the Investment Manager's affiliates will not bear any
management fees.

Performance Fee

As defined in the Confidential Offering Memorandum, the Investment Manager earns a monthly
performance fee equal to 15% of the New Profit in respect of YEN Class Units, YEN Class
{Hedged) Units and USD Class Units. The performance fee is accrued on each business day and
is payvable as of the Last business day of each calendar month and upon any intra-month redemption
or transfer of Units. The performance fee will be calculated and reported in the currency in which
the applicable class of Units is denominated. With respect to the YEN Class Units and the YEN
Class (Hedged) Units, each performance fee will be calculated without taking into account any
effect on the net asset value of such Units due to fluctuations in the exchange rate with respect to
the Trust's USD-denominated assets during the period in respect of which such performance fee is
being calculated. Additionally, with respect to the YEN Class (Hedged) Units, the performance
fee will be calculated without taking into account any expenses, profits or losses relating to any
currency hedge. Units held by the Investment Manager's affiliates will not bear any performance
fees.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Related Parties

UBS Investment Bank, an affiliate of the Investment Manager, iz one of the Trust’s executing and
prime brokers. The Trust incurred $0 in commissions and other charges on investment transactions
with UBS Investment Bank for the peniod from December &, 2019 {(Commencement of Operations) to
December 30, 2019.

Certain brokerage arrangements provide that the Investment Manager and its affiliates receive soft
dollar credits related to brokerage commissions paid by the Trust and other affiliated funds. Such
credits can be used by the Investment Manager for research and related services that would then
be paid for, or provided by, the brokers. The research services obtained by the Investment Manager
through the use of soft dollar credits can be for the benefit of the Trust or other funds managed by
the Investment Manager.

Due to Investment Manager represents payables for the management fees and performance fees.

All of the USD Class (Management) Umnits held duning the penod from December 6, 2019
{Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019, were held by affiliates of the Investment
Manager.

5. Risk Management

The Trust 1s subject to market nsk associated with changes in the value of its investments and
derivative financial instruments, as well as credit risk from the loss of appreciation ifa counterparty
fails to perform. The Investment Manager takes an active role in managing and monitoring the
Trust’s market and credit risks and has established formal control procedures, which are reviewed
on an ongoing basis.

The Investment Manager has appointed an Investment Risk Committee comprised of senior
personnel from different disciplines throughout the Investment Manager and its affiliates, The

Investment Risk Committee meets regularly and reviews the Trust’s potential exposures to market
and credit risks based on analyses performed by Risk Managers and Risk Control.

21

72/154



EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Risk Management (confinued)
Market Risk

The Investment Manager monitors the risk parameters and expected volatility of individual
positions and the Trust’s aggregate portfolio. Additionally, the Investment Manager secks to
control portfolio nisks through selective and dynamic sizing of positions based on a regular
evaluation of each investment’s nsk and reward charactenstics. Regular mark-to-market portfolio
monitoring helps the Investment Manager monitor the investments, The Investment Manager has
also developed and uses proprictary statistical models to identify and hedge systemic portfolio
sk, as well as individual position specific nsk. While the Investment Manager generally seeks to
hedge certain portfolio risks in an effort to increase the proportion of the Trust™s return attributable
to perceived high value-added risk exposures, the Investment Manager does not attempt to hedge
all market or other nisks inherent in the Trust’s positions.

Securities sold, not vet purchased, represent obligations of the Trust to deliver specified financial
instruments at contracted prices, thereby creating commitments to purchase the financial
instruments in the market at prevailing prices. Consequently, the Trust’s ultimate obligation to
satisfy the sale of secunties sold, not vet purchased, may excead the amount recogmized in the
statement of assets and liabilities.

Credit Risk

All of the Trust’s positions, including cash, due from brokers and derivative assets are held with
its brokers, counterparties and other financial institutions. In the event these parties are unable to
fulfill their obligations, the Trust would be subject to credit risk. As a result of the Trust’s trading
relationship with these firms, the Trust could have a significant concentration of credit risk with a
certain broker(s). To the extent the Trust invests in denvatives, synthetic instruments {(contracts
for differences) or it effects OTC transactions, the Trust may take on credit risk with regard to
parties with whom it trades and may also bear the nisk of settlement default. In an effort to
minimize this risk, the Investment Manager employs a margin monitoring and management
protocol on a daily basis to monitor exposure levels, The Investment Manager attempts to diversify
the credit risk associated with its trading activities by trading with multiple enfities and allocating
transaction volume to counterparties with higher credit ratings, but 1t cannot guarantee 1ts efforts
will be successtul, In addition, the Investment Manager attempts to remain active across multiple
counterparties where possible in order to maintain flexibility. The goal of the Investment Manager
is to balance operating, counterparty credit, counterparty settlement and financial nsks.
Additionally, refer to Note 6 for further discussion on the use of master netting arrangements to
help mitigate counterparty credit risk.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Risk Management (confinued)

Aside from daily monitoring of such relationships, these relationships are governed by various
contracts. Generally, these contracts are standard industry agreements such as International Swaps
and Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreements for OTC contracts. These agreements set forth
each party’s basic rights, responsibilities and duties. These agreements also contain information
regarding financial tenms and conditions, as well as termination and events of default provisions.
The Trust’s trading strategies are dependent upon the existence of these agreements. The Trust’s
counterparties usually have multiple specified events under which they can terminate individual
transactions or the entire agreement. These events are most commonly related to declines in assets
under management or performance below certain thresholds during a specified period. Should a
"trigeer event” occur, counterparties have the right to terminate individual transactions or enfire
agreements, which could severely impact the Trust’s portfolio. The Trust is not aware of any
trigger events occurring during the period from December 6, 2019 (Commencement of Operations)
to December 30, 2019. Certain swap agreements contain provisions that requare the Trust to either
post additional collateral or immediately settle any outstanding liability balances upon the
occurrence of specific credit risk related events.

The Trust invests in convertible bonds and corporate bonds. Until such investments are sold or
mature, the Trust 1s exposed to credit nsk related to whether the issuer will meet its obligation
when the securities come due.

Currency Risk

The Trust may invest a portion of 1ts assets in non-U. S, currencies, or in instruments denominated
in non-U.S8. currencies, the prices of which are determined with reference to currencies other than
the U.S. Dollar. The Trust, however, values its securities and other assets in U.S. Dollars. The
Trust generally seeks to hedge all or any portion of its foreign currency exposure. To the extent
the Trust’s investments are not hedged, the value of the Trust’s assets will fluctuate with U.S.
Dollar exchange rates as well as the price changes of the Trust’s investments in the various local
markets and currencies.

6. Derivative Contracts

In the normal course of business, the Trust enters into denivatives for trading purposes. Derivatives
are either exchange-traded or OTC contracts. Exchange-traded derivatives are standard contracts
traded on a regulated exchange. OTC contracts are private contracts negotiated with
counterparties.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Derivative Contracts (continued)

The primary differences in risks associated with OTC contracts and exchange-traded contracts are
cradit and liquudity nisks. For exchange-traded contracts, credit risk 1s lumited due to the role of the
exchange or clearing corporation. The Trust’s maximum risk of loss from counterparty credit risk
on OTC contracts is limited to the unrealized gain amount on any open contracts, net of any
collateral received or collateral paid, plus any unsettled trade amounts. For the pernod from
December 6, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019, denvatives include
forward currency contracts, options and swaps, Details of these derivatives are provided below.

Forward Contracts

The Trust is subject to foreign currency exchange risk in the normal course of pursuing its
investment objectives. The Trust may use OTC forward contracts to gain exposure to or hedge
against changes in the value of its foreign currencies. A forward contract is a cash market
transaction in which two parties agree to the purchase or sale of a currency at a specified price on
a specified date in the future. Upon entering into such contracts, the Trust bears the nisk of
exchange rates moving unexpectedly, in which case, the Trust may not achieve the anticipated
benefits of the forward contract and may realize a loss. Forward contracts are traded in unregulated
markets and are typically liquidated by settling cash.

Clptions

The Trust is subject to equity price risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange risk in the
normal course of pursuing its investment objectives. The Trust mav use exchange-traded or OTC
options to gain exposure to or hedee against changes in the value of its equities, interest rates or
foreign currencies. Options are contracts that grant the holder, for a premium payment, either the
right to purchase or sell a financial instrument at a specified price within a specified time or on a
specified date from or to the writer of the option. Options written by the Trust do not give nise to
counterparty credit risk, as they obligate the Trust and not its counterparty to perform. Options
written by the Trust are subject to off-balance-sheet risk, as the Trust’s satisfaction of the
obligations may exceed the amount recogmized in the statement of assets and liabilities. Options
are typically liquidated by selling, exercising or through expiration.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Derivative Contracts (continued)
Swaps

The Trust is subject to equity price risk in the normal course of pursuing its investment objectives.
In certain instances, the Trust may enter into swap contracts to obtain equity price exposure or to
help hedge against equty price risk. Swaps, which include contracts for differences, are
agreements between two parties to exchange cash flows based on an agreed amount of underlying
equity shares, Swaps are traded in unregulated markets and are either liquidated or held to maturity.
The unrealized gain or loss, rather than the contract or notional amounts, represents the
approximate future cash flows. The Trust may elect to receive or pay equity retums based on the
agreed numnber of underlying shares versus payving or receiving a financing amount. Swaps are
marked to market based on the move of the underlying equity security and the acerued financing
amount, and the change, if any, is recorded as unrealized appreciation/depreciation on derivative
contracts and foreign currency in the statement of operations. The nisks of swaps include changes
in market conditions affecting the value of the contract or the cash flows and the possible inability
of the counterparty to fulfill its obligations under the agreement.

The following table sets forth the Trust’s denvative contracts held at December 30, 2019, by
prnmary risk exposure, location in the statement of assets and liabilities and trading levels for the
period from December 6, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019. The values
in the tables below exclude netting by counterparty and the effects of cash received or posted as
collateral pursuant to derivative contracts, and therefore, are not representative of the Trust’s net
exposure,

Derivivtive Asonts Darivative Liahilities
Semrities
Investmients Sold, Nok Vet
Primary Risk in Securities Duerivatives Avvrage Average Purchased Drerivartives Avernge Avmage
Exposarn Fair Valaw Fair Value Motional** Contracts*** Fair Valar Fair Valae MNotional** Contrads***
Equaty H THI0E % 6618 § 10914492 s % e S {155,583) § &7 .
Foreign exchange -~ 13461 THLMS - - il -

Tatd denvative

COEtracts § T2 % 290,078 £ - & (155587

Ho open denvahve coptracts at December 30, 2015
**Amounts reflect average notona cutstandieg for forveard cusrency contracts amd swaps
o amourts reflect average contract share equivalents outstanding for options
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MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Derivative Contracts (continued)

The following table sets forth the Trust’s gains and losses related to derivative activities by primary
sk exposure and location in the statement of operations for the period from December 6, 2019
{Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019, These gains and losses should be
considered in the context that derivative contracts may have been executad to economically hedge
securities and accordingly, certain gains or losses on derivative contracts may offset certain gains
or losses attributable to securities.

Net Unrealized Mot Unrealized
Appreciation’ Appreciation’
Net Realized Gain Net Realized Gain Depreciation Depreciation
{Loss) on Derivative {Loss) on Investments on Derivative an Investments in
Conftracts and in S ecarities and Contracts and Secarities and
Primary Risk Exposire Foreign Carrency Foreign Carremcy Fordgn Currency Foreign Currency
Equty § (37,17 § (281) § 111,035 % (11385
Foresgn exchange . - 23461 -
Totad § (31179 § (9811 % 114 496§ {11, 35%)

The table below presents the faur value of denvative contracts by major product type on a gross
basis. Gross fair values exclude the effects of both counterparty netting and collateral, and
therefore are not representative of the Trust’s exposure, The table below also presents the amounts
that have been offset in the statement of assets and liabilities due to counterparty netting, as well
as cash and securities collateral posted and received under enforceable credit support agreements
reflected up to the value of denvatives.

Net Amounts Financial
Gross of Derivatives Instruments
Amounts Presented not (Hset
Gross Offset in the in the in the
Amounts of  Statement of Statement Statement of Collateral
Derivatives Assets and ol Assels and Assels and (Received)
—RBecognized  Lisbilities  Liabhilities Liahilitics Pledged*  Net Amount
Derivative Assels
Forward currency confracts 3§ 3461 35 - 5 3461 % i . 5 23,461
Contracts for differences 266618 (145,707) 120,911 - - 120,911
Exchange-traded opli ons - - - 71202 - 71202
Total 5 290079 5 (145.707) § 144,372 8§ 71202 § = 5 215574
Derivative Liabilities
Contracts for differences b3 (1555§3] 5 145,707 % (9.876) 8§ - % 9876 §
Total T (I555E3) 8 145707 § (9.E76) % . H 9876 5

* Collateral pledged 15 reflectad up to the fair value of the related denvative liabilities by counterparty. Collateral is posted baged oo notional
exposure of derwvative contracts net of the fair valua of derivatme assets At Diecerriber 30, 2019, the total cash collateral pladged for denvative
contracts iz 3,727,077, which iz incheded o due Froms brokers in the stabament of assets and labilitees, net by counterparty
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MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

7. Financial Guarantees

The Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of indemnifications. The Trust’s maximum
exposure under these arrangements is not known. However, the Trust has not had prior claims or
losses pursuant to these confracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

8. Units

The Trust issues its units of beneficial interest (Units) in three (3) separate classes: USD Class
Units, YEN Class Units and YEN Class (Hedged) Units. The liabilities of the Trust arising in
relation to any class of Units will be met from such undivided assets, provided, however. the
Trustee will attribute all gains and losses onany currency hadge to the YEN Class (Hedged) Units
and may, if appropriate, also attribute other assets and liabilities of the Trust to one or more
particular classes of Units,

The Units are offered in Japan as a public offering under Article 2, Paragraph 3, Item 1 of the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Law.

Umnits are 1ssued monthly as of the first business day of a calendar month and at such other times
as the Trustee may from time to time determine. YEN Class Units and YEN Class (Hedged) Units
are inmitially offered at a purchase price of JPY10.000 per Unit and USD Class Units are imtially
offered at a purchase price of $100 per Unit, After the initial issuance of Units, Units may continue
to be offered at the prevailing net asset value per Unit. The Trust is currently offering a single
series of YEN Class Units, YEN Class (Hedged) Units and USD Class Umits; however, the
Investment Manager, may determine to issue additional senies of YEN Class Umts, YEN Class
{Hedged) Units and USD Class Units in the future. The mininmum initial subscription size for Units
in the Trust will be (1) JPY 10,000,000 (or its equivalent in U.S. Dollars), with respect to offers to
subscribe for a specific amount of JPY (or U.S. Dollars, as applicable), or (1) 1,000 Units, with
respact to offers to subsenbe for a specific number of Units.

The Trust also offers a class of Units (USD Class (Management) Units) denominated in U.S,
Dollars to an affiliate of the Investment Manager. Such Units will not bear management fees or
performance fees. It is anticipated that the Units issued to the Investment Manager's affiliate will
be redeemed. on an approximately dollar-for-dollar basis, as additional Units are issued after the
Trust commences its trading and investment operations. Such affiliate, may, however, be required
by law to reduce its investment in the Trust to not more than 3% of the value of the Trust's
outstanding Units as of the first anniversary of the establishment of the Trust.
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MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

8. Units (continued)

Generally, unitholders will have the right to request redemption of any or all Units as of the first
business day of a calendar month, by providing five business days prior written notice to the

Administrator.

Unit transactions for the period from December 6, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) to
December 30, 2019, were as follows:

Initial Shares Shares
Issued on Additional Outstanding at
December 6, Shares Shares December 30,
2019 Issued Redeemed 2019

YEN Class 125,299.00 - - 125.299.00
YEN Class (Hedged) 79.972.00 - - 79.972.00
USD Class 144, 767.00 - - 144.767.00
USD Class (Management) 70.000.00 - {70,000.00) -
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MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

9. Financial Highlights

The following represents the per unit information, total return and ratios to average net assets for
the period from December 6, 2019 (Commencement of Operations) to December 30, 2019;

YEN Class
YEN Class {Hedged) USD Clasx

Per share operating performance
Beginning net azset value TBY 10,000 TEY 10,000 5 100,00
Income (loss) from operati ons:

Net investment loss (1&) (16} (0.1a)

Net gain on investments in securities, dervative

contracts and foreign cumency 85 19 0.57

Total from operations [ 13 0.41
Ending net assel value JPY 10,069 JFY 10013  § 100.41
Total return®
Total return before performance fee 0.72 % 0.19 % 046 %
Perfommance fee (0.03) (0.06) (0.05)
Total return after performance fee 0.69 %o 013 %4 041 %o
Ratios to average net assets®
Expenses other than performance fee 013 % 0.13 % 013 %%
Performance fee 0.07 007 0.07
Total expenses 020 %% 020 %4 0.20 %4
Wet investment loss (0.16) %o (.16} %a (0.16) %

*T obal refurn and ratics are not snualized

The financial highlights are calculated for each class taken as a whole. An individual investor’s
return and ratios may vary from these returms and ratios based on the timing of capital transactions.

10. Subsequent Events
The Investment Manager has evaluated the possibality of subsequent events existing in the Trust’s
financial statements through Apnl 20, 2020, the date the financial statements were available to be

1ssued and has concluded that there are no recognized or non-recognized subsequent events for
financial statement adjustment or disclosure, other than as noted below.
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1{. Subsequent Events (continued)

Subsequent to the fiscal year end, the global markets have been negatively impacted by the
evolving news of the spread of the public health condition known as corenavirus (COVID-19).
This situation continues to be fluid and the extent of the impact will depend on future
developments, including (1) the duration and spread of the outbreak, (ii) the repercussions on the
financial markets of restrictions and advisories related to contaiming the outbreak, and (1i1) the
effects on the economy overall, all of which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted. 1f the
COVID-19 outbreak continues for an extended period of time, the Trust’s investments and
performance may be adversely affected.

Through Apnl 14, 2020, the Trust recorded subscriptions of $245,530,905 and redemptions of
$8.621,542.
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Condensed Schedule of Investments

(Stated in United States Dollars)

December 30, 2019
Percent of
Description Shares Fair Value Net Assels
Investments in securities
Common equities
Americas:
Commumication Services 1,946,311 581 %%
Consumer Discretionary
Caesars Entertainment Corporation 41,777 565,661 1.69
Others 2,858,048 8.54
Total Consumer Discretionary 3423.709 10.23
Financials
TD Amertrade Holding Corporation 42,699 2,133,669 6.37
Health Care
WellCare Health Plans Inc 20,670 6,836,809 2042
Cithers 1,402,413 4,189
Total Health Care 8,239,222 24.61
Industrials 251,844 0.75
Information Technology
Cypress Semiconductor Corp. 112,356 2,620,142 7.83
Others 2,475,050 7.39
Total Information Technology 5,095,192 15.22
Total Americas (cost $20,808,763) 21,089,947 £2.99
Asia;
Health Care 44,262 0.13
Materials 504 462 1.78
Real Estate 4,702 0.01
Total Asia (cost $623,641) 643,426 1.92
Europe:
Communication Services 1,034,000 3.09
Consumer Discretionary 1,921,596 574
Consumer Staples 310,208 0.93
Industrials 579,679 1.73
Information Technology 565,822 1.69
Real Estate 663,540 1.98
Utilities 1,951,450 583
Total Europe (cost 36,946,275) 7,026,295 20,99
Total common equities {cost $28,378,679) 28,759,668 85.90
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Condensed Schedule of Investments (continued)
(Stated in United States Dollars)

Description

Investments in securities (continued)
Convertible bonds
Americas:
Consumer Discretionary
Caesars Entertainment Corporation (5%,
10/172024) (cost 31,362,717

Corporate bonds
Amencas:
Conswmer Discretionary

Energy
Total corporate bonds (cost $365,353)

Exchange-traded options
Americas:
Commumcation Services

Energy
Total exchange-traded options {cost $82,591)

Total investments in securities (cost 330,192,340)

b

Percent of
Par Value Fair Value Net Assets

730000 % 1,416,552 423 %

320,549 0.96

56,003 0.17

376,552 1.13

15917 0.05

55,285 0.17

71,202 0.22
§ 3062397 9148 %
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Condensed Schedule of Investments (continued)
(Stated in United States Dollars)

Percent of

Description Shares Fair Value Net Assets
Securities sold, not yet purchased
Common equities
Americas:

Consumer Discretionary b 806,371 241 %

Financials

The Charles Schwab Corporation 46,283 2,213,253 6.61
Health Care
Centeng Corporation 69,865 4,404,290 13.16

Real Estate 570,254 1.70
Total Americas (proceeds $7.727,346) 7,994,168 23 88
Asia

Consumer Discretionary 86,229 0.26

Materials 465,229 1.39
Total Asia (proceeds 3524 ,833) 551,458 165
Eunrope:

Communication Services 1,017,170 305

Consumer Staples 281,697 034

Industrials 145,503 043

Real Estate 670,471 2.00
Total Europe (proceeds $2,053,252) 2,114,841 632
Total common equities (proceeds $10,305,431) 10,660,467 31.85
Exchange-traded funds
Americas:

Information Technology (proceeds $563 440) 596,273 1.78
Total securities sold, not yet purchased

(proceeds $10,868,871) 8 11,256,740 3363 %
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Condensed Schedule of Investments (continued)

(Stated in United States Dollars)

Percent of
Description Fair Value Net Assets
Derivative contracts (excduding options)
Forward contracis
Forward currency contracts 23461 0.07 %
Swaps
Contracts for differences — long;
Americas:
Consumer Discretionary 67,675 0.20
Health Care 163,433 049
Total Americas 231,108 0.69
Asia:
Consumer Discretionary (264) {0.00})
Europe:
Consumer Discretionary 17.622 0.04
Consumer Staples (1,750} (0.01)
Energy (9,066) (0.03)
Financials (104) (0.00)
Health Care (5.000) (0.01)
Industrials 1,677 0.01
Information Technology (816) (0.00)
Utilities (4.638) (0.01})
Total Europe (2.075) (0.01)
Total contracts for differences — long 228,769 0.68
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Condensed Schedule of Investments (continued)
(Stated in United States Dollars)

Percent of
Description Fair Value Net Assets
Derivative contracts {excluding options) {continued)
Swaps (continued)
Contracts for differences — short:
Americas:
Health Care b (53,924) (0.16) %%
Index {10,294) {0.03)
Total Americas (64,218) (0.19)
Europe:
Consumer Discretionary (65,885) (0.19)
Energy 7.909 0.02
Health Care 4,460 0.01
Total Europe (33,516) (0.16)
Total contracts for differences - short (117.734) (0.35)
Total swaps 111,035 0.33
Total derivative contracts (excduding options) 3 134,496 040 %o

Denvative contracts are reflected gross before netting by counterparty in accordance with ASC 815,
Derivatives and Hedging,

See accompanying noies.
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2020

183,962,790

19,660,103,367

90,092,814

9,628,219,032

93,869,976

10,031,884,335

939,242

99.94

10,681

2020

28,303,647,

647

13,861,255,

613

14,442,392,

034

1,451,

964

91

947

2020

10,378,669,

354

5,082,786,

171

5,295,883,

183

533,

538

91

926
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1,000 107,920

1,000 106,870

2019 30 48

UBS AG

6,092
2020
1,060

2020 57

332
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2019 12 31

UBS

2019 12 31

18,171,358 1,941,973
51,001,306 5,450,510
757,069 80,908
1,786,129 190,884
71,715,862 7,664,274
38,195,003 4,081,900
13,783,393 1,473,031
51,978,396 5,554,931
19,737,466 2,109,343

71,715,862 7,664,274
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95,862,554 10,244,831
328,914 35,151
458,766 49,028

96,650,234 10,329,011

56,043,132 5,989,330

26,524,201 2,834,641

2,600,615 277,928
199,984 21,372
1,482,611 158,447
361,990 38,686
918,774 98,189
88,131,307 9,418,593
8,518,927 910,418
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UBS
2019 12 31
2018 12 31 21,218,539 2,267,625
8,518,927 910,418
UBS
(10,000,000) (1,068,700)

2019 12 31 19,737,466 2,109,343
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UBS

2019 12 31

8,518,927 910,418
(13,177,342) (1,408,263)
(421,625) (45,059)
(364,022) (38,903)
21,119,442 2,257,035
(3,138,772) (335,441)
12,536,608 1,339,787
(10,000,000) (1,068,700)
(10,000,000) (1,068,700)
2,536,608 271,087
15,634,750 1,670,886

18,171,358 1,941,973
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UBS
2019 12 31

1,057,883



U.S. GAAP

VIE

2019 12 31

FASB
ASC

ASC

ASC
606

109,973,016
24,928,207
2,422,328
(21,991,875)
(16,433,952)
(3,035,170)

95,862,554

VIE

810

249,623
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2019
2016 FASB ASU 2016-02
ASU 2016-02 2019
2016 FASB ASU 2016-13 326
CECL CECL
2020
2019 12 FASB ASU 2019-12 ASC740
ASU 2019-12
ASU 2019-12 2020 12 15
ASU 2019-12
VIEs
VIEs

VIEs
2019 12 31 VIEs
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2019 12 20 UBS
UBS 10,000,000
UBS
UBS UBS
2019 12 31 16,433,952
UBS UBS UBS
2019 12 31 UBS 1,255,346 UBS
82,263 UBS
742,322
IT
2019 12 31
25,053,166
UBS
2019 12 31
1,471,035
2019 12 31 5,991,752
UBS
2019 12 31 21,991,875
2019 12 31 5,711,710
UBS
2019 12 31 2,422,328

2019 12 31 757,069
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2014
2017 1999
2014
2019 65
65,952
401
Roth401
2020
2019 5,850
65



GEB
EOP
EOP 300,000
2019 GEB
EOP
2019 12 31 LTIP
2019 GEB GMDs
EOP
2019 2020 2018
Tier
2018
RoTE
ROAE
UBS
2017
EOP
EOP
2019 GEB
UBS

EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

GMDs
LTIP

EOP

2019
RoCET

ROAE
EOP

2018
MRTs

UBS

EOP 2019 12 31

99/154



DCCP
DCCP

10

DCCP

2019
2.3

EOP

UBS

GEB

GEB

UBS

UBS

becp

300,000

AT

Tier

DCCP

UBS
DCCP

UBS

AT

100/154

EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

UBS
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FINMA UBS
Tier GEB
20
MRTs
UBS
14,792,358
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CovID-19
COVID-
19
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Statement of Financial Condition

December 31, 2019

Assets

Cash

Advisory fees receivable
Due from affiliates
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and member’s equity
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Member's equity

Total liabilities and member’s equity

See accompanying notes.
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$ 18,171,358
51,001,306
757,069
1,786,129

$ 71715862

$ 38,195,003
13,783,303
51,978,396
19,737,466

$ 71,715,862
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Year Ended December 31, 2019

UBS O'Connor LLC

Statement of Operations

Revenues

Advisory fees $ 95862554
Interest income 328,914
Other income 458,766
Total revenues 96,650,234
Expenses

Personnel 56,043,132
Allocated expenses from affiliates 26,524,201
Professional fees 2,600,615
Subadvisory fees to third party 199,984
Information technology 1,482,611
Travel and entertainment 361,990
Other 918,774
Total expenses 88,131,307
MNet income b 8.518.927

See accompanying notes.

103/154




EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

UBS O*Connor LLC
Statement of Changes in Member’s Equity

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Member’s equity as of December 31, 2018 21,218,539
Met income 8,518,927
Capital return to UBS Americas Holding LLC (10,000,000)

Member’s equity as of December 31, 2019 $ 19,737,466

See AcCOmpanying nofes.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Operating activities
Met income 5 8,518,927
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Advisory fees receivable (13,177,342)
Due from affiliates (421,625)
Other assets (364,022)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 21,119,442
Due to affiliates (3.138.772)
Met cash provided by operating activities 12,536,608

Financing activities

Capital return to UBS Americas Holding LLC (10,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (10,000,000)
MNet increase in cash 2,536,608
Cash at beginning of year 15,634,750
Cash at end of year $ 18,171,358

Nee accompanying nofes.
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UBS O’Connor LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2019

1. Organization and Nature of Business

UBS O’Connor LLC (the Company) is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG
(UBS or the ultimate Parent). The Company’s direct parent has been changed from UBS
Americas Holding LLC to UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. as of December 31, 2019
The Company is part of the UBS Asset Management business, a division of UBS and is an
investment adviser registered with the US. Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Services Agency in Japan. The Company provides asset management and advisory
services to a series of affiliated altemative investment funds and separately managed accounts
(the Funds). All of the Company’s advisory fees are from the Funds.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Cash

Cash represents deposits of $17,113,475 held at affiliates of the Company and a deposit of
$1,057,883 held at a non-affiliated bank.

Advisory Fees and Receivables

Advisory fees, including asset-based and performance fees, are recorded as revenue as services
are performed based upon terms of the advisory agreements. Subadvisory fees and distribution
fees between third parties and affiliates of the Company are based on a percentage of net assets
under management and performance. Subadvisory fees and distribution fees between affiliates
are presented net within advisory fees on the statement of operations. Subadvisory fees and
distribution fees to third party are recorded within expenses on the statement of operations,
Subadvisory fees payable and distribution fees between affiliates are presented in due to
affiliates and due from affiliates, respectively, on the statement of financial condition.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capped fees represent reimbursements from the Funds for costs and expenses borne by the
Company on behalf of the Funds, among other expenses of the Company, and are charged to the
Funds based on the a percentage of net assets under management. Capped fees are included in
advisory fee revenue on the statement of operations, net of any related Fund administration
expenses. Other Fund related expenses are presented within professional fees on the statement of
operations.

The below table includes revenues which are impacted by Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 606, Revenue from Contracis with
Customers and it includes only those contracts with customers that are in scope of ASC Topic
606,

Disaggregation of Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Advisory fees from the Funds
Capped fees from the Funds
Distribution fees from affiliates
Distribution fees to affiliates
Subadvisory fees to affiliates
Fund administration fees

Total

$ 109,973,016
24,928,207
2,422,328
(21,991,875)
(16,433,952)
(3,035,170)

$ 95,862,554

An allowance for doubtful accounts is established. as needed, for those accounts receivable for
which collection is in doubt. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded as of
December 31, 2019,

Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal, state and local income tax
purposes. As such, the Company does not provide for or pay any U.S. federal or state income
taxes. All income, expense, gain or loss of the Company flows through to the Parent,
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Consolidation

U.S. GAAP requires a reporting entity to first assess the consolidation of entities on the basis of
the reporting entity’s ownership of a majority of voting interest. However, in certain situations,
there are no voting rights, or ownership of a majority of voting interest is not a reliable indicator
of control. If voting interests do not exist or if they differ significantly from economic interests
or if holders of the equity investment at risk lack the power to direct activities of the entity, the
obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity or the right to receive the expected residual
returns of the entity, the entity 1s considered a Varnable Interest Entity (VIE) under ASC Topic
810, Consedidation (ASC Topic 810), and control is based on a qualitative determination of
which party has a controlling financial interest in the VIE (known as the primary
beneficiary). See note 3 for additional information.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement

The Company’s functional currency is the U.S. dollar, however, it transacts some business in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the U.S. dollar are remeasured to U.S, dollars at the prevailing spot rate in effect at year-end.
Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates during the period. Gains or losses resulting
from foreign currency transactions are determined using spot rates on the date of the transaction.
For the year ended December 31, 2019, net foreign currency income of $249,623 is included in
other income on the statement of operations.

Accounting Developments
Adopted in 2019

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases. The
standard substantially changes how lessees must account for operating lease commitments,
requiring a lease liability with a corresponding right-of-use asset to be recognized on the balance
sheet, compared with the current off-balance sheet treatment of such leases. The Company
adopted ASU 2016-02 as of January 1, 2019. Upon adoption, the assets and liabilities of the
Company were not impacted as the Company is not a lessee to any leases.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Pending Adoption

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326)
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. The amendment replaces existing
incurred loss impairment guidance and introduces a new credit loss model; the Current Expected
Credit Losses model (CECL), which requires earlier recognition of credit losses. The CECL
model requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets carried at
amortized cost based on historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable
forecasts over the full remaining expected life of the financial assets. The Company will adopt
the amendment on January 1, 2020, Upon adoption, the Company will not be impacted as it does
not hold any financial instruments carried at amortized cost.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, providing guidance that simplifies the
accounting for income taxes by eliminating certain exceptions to ASC 740 related to, among
other things, the approach for intra-period tax allocation, the methodology for calculating income
taxes in an interim period and the recognition of deferred tax liabilities for outside basis
differences, and other codification improvements. In addition, ASU 2019-12 specifies that an
entity 1s not required to allocate the consolidated amount of current and deferred tax expense to a
legal entity that is not subject to tax in its separate financial statements. However, an entity may
elect to do so (on an entity-by-entity basis) for a legal entity that is both not subject to tax and
disregarded by the taxing authority. ASU 2019-12 is effective for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption of the
amendments is permitted. The Company is presently evaluating the effect of ASU 2019-12, and
expects no material impact to its financial statements.

3. Sponsored Hedge Fund Entities

The Company is the investment manager of certain hedge fund entities. The purpose of these
funds is to provide strategy specific investment opportunities for investors in exchange for
management fees and performance based fees. The investment strategies of the funds differ by
product; however, the fundamental risks of the funds have similar characteristics, including loss
of invested capital and loss of management fees and performance based fees. In the Company’s
role as tax matter partner or investment adviser, it generally considers itself the sponsor of the
applicable fund. Certain of the funds may be deemed to be VIEs. The Company's variable
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Sponsored Hedge Fund Entities (continued)

interests in such VIEs predominantly include insignificant equity interests, The Company does
not provide performance guarantees and has no other financial obligation to provide funding to
any VIEs other than its own capital commitments. As of December 31, 2019, the Company did
not have any material VIEs that had to be consolidated.

4. Related-Party Transactions

On December 20, 2019, the Company returned capital contributions of $10,000.000 to UBS
Americas Holding LLC prior to the Company being reparented to UBS Asset Management
{Americas) Inc.

The Company allocates a portion of its advisory fee revenue to UBS O’Connor Limited (a UK.
company), UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited (a Hong Kong company) and UBS
Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd (a Singapore company) for certain funds under subadvisory
agreements. These subadvisory fees, totaling $16,433 952 for the vear ended December 31,
2019, are netted in advisory fees on the statement of operations, UBS O’Connor Limited, UBS
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd are
affiliates of the Company.

As of December 31, 2019, $1,255,346 of subadvisory fees payable to UBS O'Connor Limited,
$82263 of subadvisory fees payable to UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and
$742,322 of subadvisory fees payable to UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd are included
in due to affiliates on the statement of financial condition.

Allocated expenses relate to costs allocated to the Company by affiliates. Allocated expenses
relate to overhead, occupancy, information technology, benefits, marketing and other
compensation plan costs charged to the Company by affiliates that provide such services and
support. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company incurred $25,053 166 in allocated
expenses from affiliates, excluding occupancy expenses.

The Company occupies office space in several locations leased by other UBS affiliates under
external lease commitments. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company incurred
$1,471,035 in occupancy expenses allocated from affiliates.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Related-Party Transactions (continued)

The Company reimburses affiliates for amounts paid on behalf of the Company. As of
December 31, 2019, $5,991,752 is included in due to affiliates on the statement of financial
condition.

The Company has paid certain distribution fees to affiliates of UBS. Such distribution fees are
recorded net within advisory fees on the statement of operations. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, the Company incurred $21,991,875 in distribution fees to affiliates. As of
December 31, 2019, $5,711,710 of distribution fees payable to affiliates is included in due to
affiliates on the statement of financial condition.

The Company has entered into an Investment Management agreement with UBS Asset
Management (Canada) Inc. to permit certain Canadian funds and investors to invest into a
Company-advised fund. Fees earned for the year ended December 31, 2019 under this agreement
of $2,422 328 are included in advisory fees on the statement of operations. As of December 31,
2019, fees receivable of $757,069 is included in due from affiliates on the statement of financial
condition,

5. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company participates with affiliates in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan
sponsored by the Parent that provides retirement benefits to eligible employees.

Effective December 2, 2001, the defined benefit pension plan was closed to new employees, and
new employees were automatically enrolled into the new retirement contribution feature of the
defined contnbution 401(k) plan and began earning retirement contributions beginning
January 1, 2002. In addition, existing employees as of December 1, 2001, made an election either
to participate in the new retirement contribution feature of the defined contrbution 401(k) plan
as of January 1, 2002, or to remain in the defined benefit pension plan.

The Company also participates in a Parent sponsored postretirement medical and dental plan.
Retiree medical and dental premiums are subsidized for eligible employees who retired prior to
January 1, 2014. Effective January 1, 2017, retirees who retired between and including January
1, 1999 and December 31, 2013, will be required to pay the full cost for dental coverage. Eligible
employees who retired on or after January 1, 2014 pay the full cost of medical and dental
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

coverage. With respect to the postretirement medical plan, the Parent's policy is to fund benefits
on a pay-as-you-go basis. From January 1, 2019, these participants who are age 65 or older, or
certain employees who are pre-65 and Medicare eligible, will receive an annual notional
contribution to a Health Savings Account which they can use to purchase medical insurance and
pay for eligible medical related expenses.

The Company incurred expenses of $65,952 related to the aforementioned benefit plans for the
year ended December 31, 2019, which are included in personnel expense on the statement of
operations.

The Company also participates in a defined contribution 401(k) plan of the Parent that provides
retirement benefits to eligible employees. Under the defined contribution 401(k) plan,
participants may contribute a portion of their eligible compensation on a pre-tax basis, and on a
Roth 401(k) and after-tax basis, with the Company matching some portion of those
contributions, subject to certain limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code. The
Company’s matching contributions to each participant will be limited to an annual amount of
$8,000 effective from January 1, 2020, The limit was increased from $5,850 in 2019, Eligible
participants may also receive a retirement contribution under the defined contribution plan. A
participant is 100% vested in the Company's retirement and matching contribution plus earnings
thereon after the earlier of three years of service, attaining age 65 while still an employee,
becoming totally and permanently disabled or upon death.

Generally, to receive a retirement contribution and/or retain the Company’s matching
contributions for the year, a participant must be an active employee on the last business day of
that year. The Company made a matching contribution of $187,193 to this plan during the year,
which is included in personnel expense on the statement of operations. The retirement
contribution 15 equal to 2.0% to 3.5% of eligible compensation depending on a participant’s date
of employment, subject to certain limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code. The
Company made $129,408 of retirement contribution to this plan during the year, which is
included in personnel expense on the statement of operations.

112/154



EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans

The Parent has several share-based and other compensation plans that align the interests of
Group Executive Board (GEB) members and other employees with the interests of investors.
These compensation plans are also designed to meet regulatory requirements. The most
significant compensation plans are described below.

Eguity Ohenership Plan (EQF)

The EOP is a mandatory deferred share-based compensation plan for all employees with total
annual compensation greater than USD 300,000, Starting with performance year 2019, GEB
members, Group Managing Directors (GMDs) and Vice Chairs receive Long-Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP) awards instead of EOP. The Company currently does not have any emplovees
receiving the LTIP awards for the year ended December 31, 2019.

EOP awards granted to GEB members and GMDs in 2019 and prior years, as well as EOP
awards granted to certain other emplovees, will only vest if both Group and business division
performance conditions are met. For awards granted in 2019 and 2020, related to the
performance years 2018 and 2019, respectively, the Group performance condition is based on the
average reported return on common equity tier | capital (RoCET1), For awards granted in 2018
and before, the Group performance condition is based on the average adjusted return on tangible
equity (RoTE) excluding deferred tax assets over the performance period. Business division
performance is measured on the basis of their average adjusted return on attributed equity
(RoAE). For Corporate Center employees, it is measured on the basis of the average operating
businesses” adjusted RoAE.

Certain awards, such as replacement awards issued outside the normal performance year cycle,
may take the form of deferred cash under the EOP plan rules.

Notional shares represent a promise to receive UBS shares at vesting and do not carry voting
rights during the vesting period. Awards granted generally carry a dividend equivalent that may
be paid in notional shares or cash and that vests on the same terms and conditions as the awards.
However, starting with awards granted in 2018 for the performance year 2017, European
Banking Authority guidelines do not permit individuals who are deemed to be Matenal Risk
Takers (MRTs) to receive dividend or interest payments on instruments awarded as deferred
variable compensation. Where dividend payments are not permitted, the grant price of the EOP
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans (continued)

award is adjusted for the expected dividend yield over the vesting period to reflect the fair value
of the non-dividend-bearing award.

Awards are settled by delivering UBS shares at vesting, except in jurisdictions where this is not
permitted for legal or tax reasons. EOP awards generally vest in equal installments after two and
three years following the granting of such awards. Awards granted to GEB members in 2019 and
prior years generally vest after three, four and five years. The awards are generally forfeitable
upon, among other circumstances, voluntary termination of employment with UBS. All EOP
expenses recognized in the performance year for retirement eligible employees are subject to an
expected forfeiture rate, which was 6% for the yvear ended December 31, 2019

Deferred Contingent Capital Plan (DCCFP)

The DCCP is a mandatory deferred compensation plan for all employees with total annual
compensation greater than USD 300,000,

DCCP awards take the form of notional additional tier 1 (AT1) capital instruments, which, at the
discretion of UBS, can be settled in either a cash payment or a perpetual, marketable AT1 capital
instrument. DCCP awards vest in full after five years, unless there is a trigger event.

Awards are forfeited if a viability event occurs, i.e., if FINMA notifies the firm in writing that
the DCCP awards must be written down to prevent an insolvency, bankruptey or failure of UBS,
or if UBS receives a commitment of extraordinary support from the public sector that is
necessary to prevent such an event. Additionally, they are also written down if the Group’s
common equity tier 1 capital ratio falls below 10% for GEB members and below 7% for all other
employees. As an additional performance condition, GEB members forfeit 20% of their award
for each loss-making vear during the vesting period.

Interest payments on DCCP awards are paid at the discretion of UBS. Where interest payments
are not permitted, such as for MRTs, the DCCP award reflects the fair value of the granted non-
interest-bearing award.

The awards are generally forfeitable upon, among other circumstances, voluntary termination of
employment with UBS.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans (continued)
Asset Management EQP

In order to align deferred compensation of certain Asset Management employees with the
performance of the investment funds they manage, awards are granted to such employees in the
form of cash-settled notional investment funds. The amount delivered depends on the value of
the underlying investment funds at the time of vesting. The awards are generally forfeitable
upon, among other circumstances, voluntary termination of employment with UBS.

Equity Plus Plan (Equity Plus)

Equity Plus is a voluntary share-based compensation plan that provides eligible employees with
the opportunity to purchase UBS shares at market value and receive one notional share for every
three shares purchased, up to a maximum annual limit. Share purchases may be made annually
from the performance award and/or monthly through deductions from salary. If the shares
purchased are held until three years from the start of the associated plan year and, in general, if
the employee remains employed by UBS, the notional shares vest. Employees are entitled to
receive a dividend equivalent which may be paid in notional shares and/or cash.

The amount of non-vested awards not yet recognized in 2019, was $14,792,358 which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.3 years.

7. Funding Facility

The Company has an uncommitted, unsecured money market funding facility with UBS
Americas Holding Inc. for CHF 20 million. The agreement requires periodic interest payments
on any borrowed amounts. The funding facility has no expiration date. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, the Company did not incur any interest expense related to this funding
facility as no borrowings occurred during the year.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various regulatory matters arising in the normal course of business.
Management cannot predict with certainty the outcome of pending regulatory matters. While the
outcome of such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, in the opinion of management of the
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Company, any such actions will be resolved with no material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial statements taken as a whole.

9. Subsequent Events

The Company is required by accounting literature (ASC 835, Subseqguent Fvens) to evaluate
whether events occurring after the statement of financial condition date but before the date the
statement of financial condition is available to be issued require accounting as of the statement of
financial condition date or disclosure in the financial statements, The Company has evaluated all
subsequent events through the date the financial statements were available to be issued and
determined that no such events have occurred other than as noted below.

The novel Coronavirus or Covid-19, in China and its subsequent spread worldwide has
significantly increased risk within the global economy and investor uncertainty. In addition,
substantial deterioration in oil prices may have additional effects on the economy and certain
sectors. As a result equity markets have experienced significant declines, market volatility has
substantially increased and some markets have experienced disruptions in orderly function. The
Federal Reserve reduced lending rates.

The outbreak of Covid-19 and the measures being taken globally to reduce the peak of the
resulting pandemic will likely have a significant adverse effect on global economic activity,
including in the United States. An estimate of the financial effect of the economic implications of
Covid-19 is under evaluation.
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2018 12 31

UBS

2018 12 31

15,634,750 1,670,886
37,823,964 4,042,247
335,444 35,849
1,422,107 151,981
55,216,265 5,900,962
17,075,561 1,824,865
16,922,165 1,808,472
33,997,726 3,633,337
21,218,539 2,267,625

55,216,265 5,900,962
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68,882,974 7,361,523

71,989 7,693
40,761 4,356
68,995,724 7,373,573
37,048,289 3,959,351
28,444,568 3,039,871
3,659,181 391,057
1,746,805 186,681
986,145 105,389
761,242 81,354
990,361 105,840
73,636,591 7,869,542

(4,640,867) (495,969)




2017 12 31
ASU  2014-09
ASU 2016-01

2018

UBS
2018 12 31

UBS

2018 12 31
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4,124,488 440,784

(442,896) (47,332)

431,308 46,094
4,112,900 439,546
25,000,000 2,671,750
(4,640,867) (495,969)
(3,253,494) (347,701)

21,218,539

2,267,625




UBS

UBS

2018 12 31
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(4,640,867) (495,969)
(8,188,357) (875,090)

(16,524) (1,766)

282,743 30,217
(7,049,278) (753, 356)
(6,840,278) (731,021)
(26,452,561) (2,826,985)
25,000,000 2,671,750
(3,253,494) (347,701)
21,746,506 2,324,049
(4,706,055) (502,936)
20,340,805 2,173,822
15,634,750 1,670,886

104,948 11,216




UBS

UBS

2018 12 31

UBS
UBS
SMA
U.S.GAAP
12,789,756
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U.S. GAAP
ASC 810 ASC
810 VIE VIE
2018 12 31 55,091

2018

2014 FASB ASU 2014-09

FASB ASU
ASU

2018
442,896
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ASC 606
ASC 606
90,978,404
27,365,870
840,476
(24,648,176)
(21,962,365)
(3,691,235)
68,882,974
2016 FASB ASU 2016-01
01 2018 FASB  ASU 2016-01
2018-03
ASU
ASU 2018
431,308
2017 FASB ASU 2017-07 715
ASU  2017-07
2018
2017 FASB
718
ASU  2017-09

2018
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ASU 2016-
ASU
825-10
2018 12 31
40,761
ASU 2017-07
ASU 2017-09
ASU 2017-09
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VIEs
VIES
VIES
2018 12 31 VIES
2018 12 18 25,000,000
QPAM 100
UBS
UBS UBS
2018 12 31 21,962,365
UBS UBS UBS
2018 12 31 UBS 4,618,338 UBS
157,231 UBS
376,598
IT

2018 12 31

26,774,883 2018 12 31 6,347,242
UBS
2018 12 31
1,669,685
UBS
2018 12 31 24,648,176
2018 12 31 5,422,756
UBS
2018 12 31 828,397

2018 12 31 335,444
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2001

228,729

12
2001 12
2013 12 31
65
2018 12 31
401

401

HSA

5,750

100

1.5
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2014
2017 1999
2014
2019 65
177,338
401
Roth401
2019
2018 4,500

65



GEB
EOP
EOP EOP
UBS
2014
2018
GEB EOP
EOP
UBS
EOP
Decp
EOP
DCCP
GEB

UBS

2017
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2014
MRTs 2017
EOP
2018 12 31 6.17
EOP
Tier AT
UBS Tier CET
FINVA UBS
DCCP
DCCP
2018 MRT
EOP
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UBS AG UBS AG
2014
2018 15,291,346
UBS 20,000,000
2018 12 31 2018 12 31
104,948
LIBOR

2019
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UBS O’Connor LLC

Statement of Financial Condition

December 31, 2018

Assets

Cash

Advisory fees receivable
Due from affiliates
Other assets

Total assets

Liahilities and member’s equity
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Member's equity

Total liabilities and member’s equity

See accompanying noies.
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§ 15634750
37,823,964
335444
1,422,107

§ 55216265

5 17,075,561
16,922,165
33,997726
21,218,539

§ 55216265




Statement of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Revenues
Advisory fees
Interest income
Other income
Total revenues

Expenses

Personnel

Allocated expenses from affiliates
Professional fees

Subadvisory fees to third party
Information technology

Travel and entertainment

Dther

Total expenses

Net loss

See accompanving notes.

UBS O’Connor LLC
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$ 68,382974

71,989
40,761

68,995 724

37,048,289
28,444 568
3,659 181
1,746,805
986,145
761,242
990,361

73,636,591

5 (4,640,867)
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UBS O’Connor LLC

Statement of Changes in Member’s Equity

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Member’s equity as of December 31, 2017 5 4,124 488
Opening balance adjustment (Note 2) due to ASU 2014-09 {442,896)
Opening balance adjustment (Note 2) due to ASU 2016-01 431,308

Adjusted member’s equity as of January 1, 2018 b3 4,112,900
Capital contribution from Parent 25, 000,000
Net loss (4,640 867)
Distribution to UBS, net {3,253,494)

Member’s equity as of December 31, 2018 % 21.21853%

See accompanying notes.
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UBS O’Connor LLC

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Operating activities
et loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in
operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Advisory fees receivable
Due from affiliates
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to affiliates
Net cash used in operating activities

Financing activities

Capital contribution

Distribution to UBS, net

MNet cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of vear

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid on funding line

See accompanying noies.
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S  (4,640,867)

(8,188,357)
(16,524)
282,743

(7,049,278)

(6,840.278)

(26,452,561)

25,000,000
(3.253.494)
21,746,506

(4,706,055)
20,340,805
$ 15,634,750

$ 104,948
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UBS O’Connor LLC

Motes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2018

1. Organization and Nature of Business

UBS O'Connor LLC (the Company) is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG
(UBS or the Parent). The Company is part of the UBS Asset Management business and is an
investment adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Services Agency in Japan. The Company provides asset management and advisory
services to a series of affiliated altemative investment funds and separately managed accounts
(the Funds). All of the Company’s advisory fees are from the Funds.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (LS. GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires
management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Cash

Cash represents deposits of 512,789,756 held at affiliates of the Company and a deposit of
£2 844 994 held at a non-affiliated bank.

Advisory Fees and Receivables

Advisory fees, including asset-based and performance fees, are recorded as revenue as services
are performed based upon terms of the advisory agreements, Subadvisory fees and distribution
fees between third parties and affiliates of the Company are based on a percentage of net assets
under management and performance. Subadvisory fees and distribution fees between affiliates
are presented net within advisory fees on the statement of operations. Subadvisory fees and
distribution fees to third party are recorded within expenses on the statement of operations.
Subadvisory fees payable and distribution fees between affiliates are presented in due to
affiliates and due from affiliates, respectively, on the statement of financial condition.

Capped fees represent reimbursements from the Funds for costs and expenses borne by the
Company on behalf of the Funds, among other expenses of the Company, and are charged to the
Funds based on the a percentage of net assets under management. Capped fees are included in
advisory fee revenue on the statement of operations, net of any related Fund administration
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UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

expenses. Other Fund related expenses are presented within professional fees on the statement of
operations.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is established, as needed. for those accounts receivable for
which collection is in doubt. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded as of
December 31, 2018.

Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal, state and local income tax
purposes. As such, the Company does not provide for or pay any U.S. federal or state income
taxes. All income, expense, gain or loss of the Company flows through to the Parent.

Consolidation

U.S. GAAP requires a reporting entity to first assess the consalidation of entities on the basis of
the reporting entity’s ownership of a majority of voting interest. However, in certain situations,
there are no voting rights, or ownership of a majority of voting interest is not a reliable indicator
of control. If voting interests do not exist or if they differ significantly from economic interests
or if holders of the equity investment at risk lack the power to direct activities of the entity, the
obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity or the right to receive the expected residual
returns of the entity, the entity is considered a Variable Interest Entity (VIE) under Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 810, Consolidation (ASC Topic 810), and control is based
on a qualitative determination of which party has a controlling financial interest in the VIE
(known as the primary beneficiary). See note 3 for additional information.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement

The Company’s functional currency is the U.S. dollar, however, it transacts some business in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the U.S. dollar are remeasured to U.S. dollars at the prevailing spot rate in effect at year-end.
Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates during the period. Gains or losses resulting
from foreign currency transactions are determined using spot rates on the date of the transaction.
For the year ended December 31, 2018, net foreign currency loss of $55,091 is included in other
expenses on the statement of operations.
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UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Accounting Developments - Adopted in 2018

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2014-09, Reverme from Contracts with Customers. Subsequently, the FASB has
issued further ASUs for purposes of amending or clanfving that guidance. The ASUs establish
principles for revenue recognition that apply to all contracts with customers except those
relating to financial instruments, leases, and insurance contracts and require an entity to
recognize revenue as performance obligations are satisfied. In particular, the standard now
specifies that vaniable consideration is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the vanable
consideration is subsequently resolved. This may affect when certain performance-based and
asset based fees can be recognized. It also provides guidance on when revenues and expenses
should be presented on a gross or net basis and establishes a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements for information on the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows from contracts with customers.

The Company adopted the standard as of its mandatory effective date on January 1, 2018, and
applied it on a modified retrospective basis, recognizing the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard as an adjustment decreasing the opening balance of member's equity in
the amount of $442 896, and a corresponding decrease in advisory fees receivable. There were
changes in the timing and presentation of certain fee income and expense based on the guidance
provided by the standard.

The below table includes revenues which are impacted by ASC Topic 606, Revenue from

Comtracts with Customers (ASC 606), and it includes only those contracts with customers that
are in scope of ASC Topic 606.
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UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Disaggregation of Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Advisory fees from the Funds S 90,978 404
Capped fees from the Funds 27.365,870
Distribution fees from affiliates 840,476
Distribution fees to affiliates (24,648,176)
Subadvisory fees to affiliates (21,962,365)
Fund administration fees (3.691,235)
Total S 6B.8E2974

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities (ASU 2016-01). In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU No,
2018-03, Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments-Overall (subtopic
825-10), to clanify certain provisions in ASU 2016-01. The ASUs address certain aspects of
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments and primarily
affects the accounting for financial assets and liabilities under the fair value option and the
presentation and disclosure requirements for financial instruments. The Company adopted both of
the ASUs as of January 1, 2018 and in line with transitional provisions, recognized the cumulative
effect of initially applying the standards as an adjustment increasing the opening balance of
member’s equity in the amount of $431,308, and a corresponding increase in other assets. For the
year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recognized $40,761 of income from fair value
measurement which is included in other income on the statement of operations.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07, Compensation—=Retirement Benefits (Topic
713): Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement
Benefir Cost (ASU 2017-07). ASU 2017-07 requires that an employer disaggregate the service
cost component from other components of net benefit costs. The service cost component of net
pertodic pension and postretirement benefit cost should be reported in the same financial
statement line item(s) as other current emplovee compensation costs arising from services
rendered by emplovees. All other components of net benefit cost must be presented separately in
the income statement from the service cost component, and outside any subtotal of operating
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UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

income. The Company adopted the standard as of its mandatory effective date on January 1,
2018. This change in presentation did not have a matenial effect on the statement of operations.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, Receivables—Compensation—=Stock
Compensation (Subtopic 718): Scope of Modification Accommting (ASU 2017-09), which amends
the accounting for modifications of share-based payment awards. ASU 2017-09 requires that
maodification accounting be applied when a change to the terms or conditions of an award is
substantive. The Company adopted the standard as of its mandatory effective date on January 1,
2018. Adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

3. Sponsored Hedge Fund Entities

The Company is the investment manager of certain hedge fund entities. The purpose of these
funds is to provide strategy specific investment opportunities for investors in exchange for
management fees and performance based fees. The investment strategies of the funds differ by
product; however, the fundamental risks of the funds have similar characteristics, including loss
of invested capital and loss of management fees and performance based fees. In the Company’s
role as tax matter partner or investment adviser, it generally considers itself the sponsor of the
applicable fund. Certain of the funds may be deemed to be VIEs. The Company's variable
interests in such VIEs predominantly include insignificant equity interests. The Company does
not provide performance guarantees and has no other financial obligation to provide funding to
any VIEs other than its own capital commitments. As of December 31, 2018, the Company did
not have any material VIEs that had to be consolidated.

4. Related-Party Transactions

On December 18, 2018, the Company received capital contribution of $25,000,000 from the
Parent. The recapitalization will permit the Company to have a positive equity position of at least
£1 million to comply with the Qualified Professional Asset Manager (QPAM) requirements.

The Company allocates a portion of its advisory fee revenue to UBS O'Connor Limited
(a UK. company), UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited (a Hong Kong company) and
UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd (a Singapore company) for certain funds under
subadvisory agreements. These subadvisory fees, totaling $21,962365 for the vear ended
December 31, 2018, are netted in advisory fees on the statement of operations. UBS O’ Connor
Limited, UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and UBS Asset Management
(Singapore) Ltd are affiliates of the Company.
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UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Related-Party Transactions (continued)

As of December 31, 2018, 54,618,338 of subadvisory fees payable to UBS O’Connor Limited,
$157.231 of subadvisory fees pavable to UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and
$376.598 of subadvisory fees pavable to UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd are included
in due to affiliates on the statement of financial condition.

Allocated expenses relate to costs allocated to the Company by affiliates. Allocated expenses
relate to overhead, occupancy, information technology, benefits, marketing and other
compensation plan costs charged to the Company by affiliates that provide such services and
support. In addition. the Company reimburses affiliates for amounts paid on behalf of the
Company. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company incurred $26,774 883 in
allocated expenses from affiliates, excluding occupancy expenses. As of December 31, 2018,
$6,347.242 of such expenses is included in due to affiliates on the statement of financial
condition.

The Company occupies office space in several locations leased by other UBS affiliates under
external lease commitments. The Company reimburses those affiliates for their lease expenses.
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company incurred $1,669.685 in occupancy
expenses allocated from affiliates.

The Company has paid certain distribution fees to affiliates of UBS. Such distribution fees are
recorded net within advisory fees on the statement of operations. For the year ended
December 31, 2018, the Company incurred $24,648,176 in distribution fees to affiliates. As of
December 31, 2018, $5,422,756 of distnbution fees payable to affiliates is included in due to
affiliates on the statement of financial condition.

The Company has entered into an Investment Management agreement with UBS Asset
Management (Canada) Inc. to permit certain Canadian funds and investors to invest into a
Company-advised fund. Fees earned for the year ended December 31, 2018 under this agreement
of $828,397 are included in advisory fees on the statement of operations. As of December 31,
2018, fees receivable of $335,444 is included in due from affiliates on the statement of financial
condition,
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UBS O*Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company participates with affiliates in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan
sponsored by the Parent that provides retirement benefits to eligible employees.

Effective December 2, 2001, the defined benefit pension plan was closed to new employees, and
new employvees were automatically enrolled into the new retirement contribution feature of the
defined contribution 401(k) plan and began earning retirement contributions beginning
JTanuary 1, 2002 In addition, existing emplovees as of December 1, 2001, made an election either
to participate in the new retirement contribution feature of the defined contribution 401(k) plan
as of January 1, 2002, or to remain in the defined benefit pension plan.

The Company also participates in a Parent sponsored postretirement medical and dental plan.
Retiree medical and dental premiums are subsidized for eligible employees who retired prior to
January 1, 2014. Effective January 1, 2017, retirees who retired between and including January
I, 1999 and December 31, 2013, will be required to pay the full cost for dental coverage. Eligible
employees who retired on or after January 1, 2014 pay the full cost of medical and dental
coverage. With respect to the postretirement medical plan, the Parent's policy is to fund benefits
on a pay-as-you-go basis. From January 1, 2019, these participants who are age 65 or older, or
certain employees who are pre-65 and Medicare eligible, will receive an annual notional
contribution to a Health Savings Account which they can use to purchase medical insurance and
pay for eligible medical related expenses.

The Company incurred expenses of $177,338 related to the aforementioned benefit plans for the
year ended December 31, 2018, which are included in personnel expense on the statement of
operations.

The Company also participates in a defined contribution 401(k) plan of the Parent that provides
retirement benefits to eligible employees. Under the defined contribution 401(k) plan,
participants may contribute a portion of their eligible compensation on a pre-tax basis, and on a
Roth 401(k) and afier-tax basis, with the Company matching some portion of those
contributions, subject to certain limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code. The
Company’s matching contributions to each participant will be limited to an annual amount of
$5,750 effective from January 1, 2019, The limit was increased from 4,500 in 2018, Eligible
participants may also receive a retirement contribution (as discussed below) under the defined
contribution plan. A participant is 100% wvested in the Company's retirement and matching
contribution plus earnings thereon after the earlier of three years of service, attaining age 65
while still an employee, becoming totally and permanently disabled or upon death.
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UBS O*Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

Generally, to receive a retirement contribution and/or retain the Company’s matching
contributions for the year, a participant must be an active employee on the last business day of
that year. The Company made a matching contnbution of $228,729 to this plan during the year,
which is included in personnel expense on the statement of operations. The retirement
contribution is equal to 1.5% to 3.5% of eligible compensation depending on a participant’s date
of employment, subject to certain limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code.

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans

The Parent operates several equity participation and other compensation plans to align the
interests of Group Executive Board (GEB) members, Key Risk Takers and other employees with
the interests of investors while continuously meeting regulatory requirements. The Parent
operates compensation plans on a mandatory, discretionary and voluntary basis.

Equity Ownership Plan (EOP)

Certain emplovees receive a portion of their annual performance-related compensation above a
certain threshold in the form of EOP notional shares or EOP performance shares (i.e. notional
shares which are subject to performance conditions).

Notional shares represent a promise to receive UBS shares at vesting and do not carry voting
rights during the vesting period. Notional shares granted before February 2014 have no rights to
dividends, whereas awards granted since February 2014 carry a dividend equivalent which may
be paid in notional shares or cash and which vests on the same terms and conditions as the
awards. However, awards that have been granted to Material Risk Takers (MRTs) since February
2018 for the performance year 2017 do not carry such a dividend equivalent to comply with
regulatory requirements.

For employees other than GEB members, EOP awards generally vest in equal installments in
years two and three. The plan includes provisions that enable the firm to trigger forfeiture of
some, or all, of any unvested award or portion of an award (a) if an employee commits certain
harmful acts and (b) in most cases of terminated employment. EOP expense is recognized in the
performance year if the employee meets the retirement eligibility requirements at the date of
grant. Otherwise, the expense of each vesting portion of deferred compensation is recognized
from the grant date to the earlier of the vesting date or the retirement eligibility date of the
employee, on a straight line basis. All EOP expenses recognized is subject to an expected
forfeiture rate, which was 6.17% at December 31, 2018,
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UBS O*Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans (continued)

Key Risk Takers (globally defined as those employees who, by the nature of their role, have been
determined to materially set, commit or control significant amounts of the firm’s resources and /
or exert significant influence over its nsk profile), Group Managing Directors or employees
whose total compensation exceeds a certain threshold, receive performance shares under EOP.
These performance shares only vest in full if certain performance requirements are met. Such
performance requirements are currently based on UBS Group's adjusted return on tangible equity
and the divisional return on attributed equity over the defined financial years during vesting.

Certain awards, such as replacement awards, may take the form of deferred cash under the EOP
rules.

Deferrved Contingent Capital Plan (DCCP)

Similar to EOP awards, certain employees receive a portion of their annual performance-related
compensation above a certain threshold in the form of a notional additional tier 1 (AT1) capital
instrument.

DCCP awards vest in full five years from grant and are forfeited if UBS's common equity tier 1
(CET1) capital ratio falls below 7% (for employees other than the Group Executive Board). In
addition, awards are also forfeited if a viability event occurs (that is, if the Swiss Financial
Market Supervisory Authority (“FINMA”™) provides a written notice to UBS that the DCCP
awards must be written down to prevent an insolvency. bankruptcy or failure of UBS, or if UBS
receives a commitment of extraordinary support from the public sector that is necessary to
prevent such an event). Under the DCCP, employees may receive discretionary annual interest
payments, However, no interest is paid on awards that have been granted to MRTs since
February 2018 for the performance year 2017 to comply with regulatory requirements.

Provisions for forfeiture of awarded DCCP and recognition of associated expense are the same as
with EOP,

Voluntary share-based compensation plans
Eguity Plus Plan (Equity Plus)

Equity Plus is a voluntary plan that provides eligible employees with the opportunity to purchase
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UBS O'Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans (continued)

UBS Group AG shares at market value and receive, at no additional cost, one notional UBS
Group AG share for every three shares purchased, up to a maximum annual limit. Share
purchases may be made annually from the performance award and / or monthly through
deductions from salary. If the shares purchased are held for maximum three years and in general
if the employee remains in employment, the notional shares vest. For notional shares granted
since April 2014, employees are entitled to receive a dividend equivalent which may be paid in
either notional shares and / or cash.

The amount of non-vested awards not vet recognized in 2018, was $15291,346 which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2 years.

7. Funding Facility

The Company has an uncommitted, unsecured money market funding facility with UBS
Americas Inc. for CHF 20 million. The agreement requires periodic interest payments on any
borrowed amounts. The funding facility has no expiration date. There were no borrowings
outstanding as of December 31, 2018. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company
incurred and paid $104,948 of interest related to this funding facility, which is included in other
expenses on the statement of operations. The interest rate charged is based upon an internal rate
derived using one-month LIBOR.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various regulatory matters arising in the normal course of business.
Management cannot predict with certainty the outcome of pending regulatory matters. While the
outcome of such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, in the opinion of management of the
Company, any such actions will be resolved with no material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial statements taken as a whole.

9. Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 7, 2019, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Management has determined that there are no material

events or transactions that would affect the Company’s financial statements or require disclosure
in the Company’s financial statements through this date.
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Report of Independent Auditors
The Trustee

Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the condensed schedule of investments, as
of December 30, 2019, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the
period from December 6, 2019 commencement of operations to December 30, 2019, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia statements are free of
materia misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial
position of Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund at December 30, 2019, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the period from December 6, 2019 commencement of
operations to December 30, 2019 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
Cayman Idlands
April 20, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Member
UBS O’ Connor LLC

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of UBS O’ Connor LLC, which comprise the statement of
financial condition as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of operations, changes in member's
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material
mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financia statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of UBS O’ Connor LLC at December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young LLP
May 29, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors
The Member

UBS O’ Connor LLC

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of UBS O’ Connor LLC, which comprise the statement of
financial condition as of December 31, 2018, and the related statements of operations, changes in member's
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financia statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financia
position of UBS O’ Connor LLC at December 31, 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young LLP
June 7, 2019
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